Goodyear	City of Goodyear	Meeting Location:
	Meeting Minutes	Goodyear Justice Center 14455 W. Van Buren St., Suite B101
	City Council Worksession	Goodyear, AZ 85338
	Mayor Georgia Lord	
	Vice Mayor Joe Pizzillo	
	Councilmember Joanne Osborne	
	Councilmember Sheri Lauritano	
	Councilmember Wally Campbell	
	Councilmember Bill Stipp	
	Councilmember Sharolyn Hohman	
Monday, March 31, 2014	5:15 PM	Goodyear Justice Center

Immediately follows the Joint Worksession of the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission that begins at 4:30 P.M.

1 CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Lord called the Worksession to order at 7:49 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL

Present 6 - Mayor Lord, Vice Mayor Pizzillo, Councilmember Osborne, Councilmember Lauritano, Councilmember Stipp, and Councilmember Hohman
Excused 1 - Councilmember Campbell

Staff Present: City Manager Brian Dalke, City Attorney Roric Massey and City Clerk Maureen Scott

3. AGENDA ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION:

3.1 <u>14-5208ws</u> Council will receive a presentation on the City's status as a CDBG Entitlement Community, the process for becoming an entitlement community grantee, and options for future participation in the CDBG program.

Katie Wilken, Planner III, presented. The City of Goodyear has been invited by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to become an entitlement community grantee. The City must notify HUD of its decision to either accept Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) entitlement status or remain with the Maricopa County Urban County program by April 15, 2014. Staff is requesting Council direction to either accept CDBG entitlement status or remain with the Maricopa County program.

A city participates in the CDBG program in one of two ways. Smaller cities participate in the State Administered CDBG program. This program is in place to assist smaller cities who do not have the internal capacity to administer their own programs. Maricopa County has been designated as an Urban County program which means that the State Administered CDBG program is administered by the County's Human Resources Department. Through this program, the State allocates funds directly to Maricopa County who distributes these funds to

program participants through a competitive grant process. An Urban County program participant is not guaranteed to receive funding. Each year, the Urban County Program participants apply to the County for funding of specific projects. The Community Development Advisory Committee (CDAC), made up of representatives from the participating communities and the County at large, reviews the applications and makes recommendations for funding to the County Board of Supervisors who then makes the final determination on grant awards and funding levels.

The other way a city may participate in CDBG is through the CDBG Entitlement Community Program. To become an entitlement community grantee a city must have a population of 50,000 and be formally invited by HUD to participate in the program. An entitlement community grantee is entitled to receive an annual allocation of CDBG funds directly from HUD, rather than going through a competitive process. These allocated funds can be used for a wide variety of projects and a portion of the funds also can be used to cover administrative costs.

The City of Goodyear was invited by HUD to become an entitlement community grantee in 2008 and 2010. At that time, the City felt that it did not have the internal capacity to administer its own program and decided to continue its participation in the Urban County Program and executed a three-year agreement with Maricopa County. This agreement expires on June 30, 2015.

Funding:

<u>Entitlement:</u> HUD has informed the City that its estimate of the annual allocation the City would receive is approximately \$293,000. The exact figure the City will receive will not be determined until acceptance in the Entitlement Community Program. The City would not receive funds until FY15-16 and so population growth may increase the allocation, however, it may be less than this figure as the County has been advised of an 8% reduction in the CDBG budget for FY14-15.

The City would be able to use up to 20% of the allocation, or \$58,600, for administrative costs. There are also other restrictions on the funding amounts such as funds to support public service projects that are limited to 15% of the total annual allocation, but funding of these project types is not required. There is also a cap of 30% of funding for slum and blight projects. There would also be additional ongoing expenses which may not be fully covered by the grant funds.

Each program has certain advantages and disadvantages, and there are several factors that should be considered when deciding which program option to select:

1. The amount of funding the City is likely to receive under each program;

2. The types of projects that are eligible under each program;

3. The City's administrative capacity to administer the program with or without assistance from the County; and,

4. The relationship of each CDBG program option to other federal grant programs, such as the HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME).

The following information compares and contrasts both programs based on these factors.

<u>Urban County Program:</u> The City of Goodyear has participated in the Urban County program since 1991. The Urban County's competitive grant process begins in October when a project from the City's Five-Year Consolidated Plan is identified for grant funding. The City must hold a public hearing to receive input on the project and City Council approves the grant application and requested funding levels. The grant applications are due to the County in December at which time CDAC reviews the applications, holds two public hearings to consider the applications, and then recommends grant awards and funding levels to the County Board of Supervisors sometime in April. The County Board of Supervisors vote on the grant allocations and funding levels in May which is then reported to HUD. The City then enters into an IGA with the County to administer the grant and the City receives the release of funds in July.

Types of Projects & Programs:

Determining eligible projects for the CDBG program is different from other grant programs. There are two tests for determining eligibility; the project first must be listed as an eligible activity and it also must meet one of the three national objectives of the CDBG program which are: benefit to low and moderate income families; aid in the prevention or elimination of slum and blight; or urgent need. As previously noted, Census data are used to determine what areas are considered low and moderate income neighborhoods and the City-adopted Redevelopment Area is used to establish where funds can be used for the prevention or elimination of slum and blight.

The CDBG program offers grantees a high level of flexibility in choosing program activities so a wide range of projects are eligible for CDBG funds including, but not limited to: senior services, neighborhood facilities, job creation, energy efficiency, youth services, crime awareness, housing programs, and infrastructure improvements so long as the project meets one of the national objectives. Buildings for the general conduct of government, general government expenses and political activities are not eligible for funding.

<u>Urban County Program:</u> While all projects that are CDBG eligible are also eligible under the Urban County Program, CDAC has primary control in recommending the types of projects that are of highest priority. It is also difficult for a community to apply for more than one program or fund public service projects.

<u>Entitlement:</u> The City determines the need for projects and programs through the creation of the Five-Year Consolidated Plan. The City could fund multiple projects and public service projects, however, these types of projects do incur a higher administrative burden. The primary advantage to the entitlement community is the ability to plan for projects.

Program Administration:

In order to implement a CDBG program, a community must understand community needs and interests in order to make effective choices about how to fund programs and projects. Each grantee is required to create a Five-Year Consolidated Plan which describes community needs, resources, priorities, and proposed activities. The plan also includes an analysis of the housing market and impediments to Fair Housing. Each year, the grantee must submit an Annual Action Plan to HUD which outlines the specific planned uses of funds that program year. The grantee then administers programs and monitors any sub-recipients. Grantees are required to

use the Integrated Disbursement and Information System (IDIS) to comply with current reporting requirements. At the end of each program year the grantee must submit a performance report called the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER). Because this is a federal program all projects also must comply with federal requirements such as fair labor standards, Davis-Bacon Wages, Uniform Relocation Act, Fair Housing, and environmental review and compliance.

<u>Urban County Program:</u> The County is the main responsible party for creating the required Five-Year Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plan, CAPER, and environmental reviews. The County is also responsible for all IDIS reporting. The County provides Fair Housing training and responds to all Fair Housing complaints within Goodyear. The City is responsible for ensuring compliance with federal requirements such as Davis-Bacon Wages, etc., but the County does provide guidance in meeting these requirements.

<u>Entitlement:</u> The City will be responsible for creating and administering all required plans including the Five-Year Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan; documents; environmental reviews; forms, reporting such as the CAPER and IDIS; and handling Fair Housing complaints. When speaking with other communities, they almost all have one dedicated staff member to the CDBG program.

HOME Program:

The HOME Investment Partnership program is a HUD block grant that provides funding for housing for low-income households. HOME funds can be used for a variety of housing activities including housing rehabilitation, new housing construction, homeownership assistance and rental assistance. HOME funds require a 25% cash match from the grantee regardless if the entity is under the Urban County Program or CDBG Entitlement Program.

<u>Urban County Program:</u> Currently, Maricopa County administers HOME funds on behalf of the Urban County participants. The County is currently administering a homebuyer program and emergency repair program. Two homes in Goodyear were purchased using the homebuyer program and four homes in Goodyear have been assisted with the emergency repair program.

<u>Entitlement:</u> The City would have the option of joining the Maricopa County HOME Consortium and receive an allocation of \$67,000. This would require a \$17,000 match from the City of Goodyear and would allow a total project budget of \$84,000. The City would also have the option of not joining the consortium and remaining with the Urban County program for the HOME program.

Option 1: Continue Participation in the Urban County Program and Execute a New 3-Year Agreement with Maricopa County (2015-2018) <u>Advantages:</u>

- The County creates the Five-Year Consolidated Plan, Annual Action Plan, CAPER and environmental reviews.
- The County provides assistance and is responsible for IDIS reporting.
- The County conducts the program audits in a cooperative and supportive manner.
- The City might receive more funds through the Urban County program.

The County responds to Fair Housing complaints within the City of Goodyear.

Disadvantages:

- The City is not guaranteed funding each year and each year the application process is more competitive.
- The County limits the types of projects that get funded.
- The City cannot use funds for administrative costs.

Option 2: Accept HUD's Invitation to Become an Entitlement Community Grantee <u>Advantages:</u>

- The City will be guaranteed an annual allocation of about \$293,000.
- The City will be able to use 20% of funds for administrative costs (approximately \$58,000 based on the estimated allocation).
- The City will have more flexibility in the types of projects and programs the City administers.
- · Larger projects could be funded through committing future year allocations.

Disadvantages:

- The City will have to administer the entire program.
- . Dedicate a staff member to the program or hire a new staff person.
- . Train 1-2 other staff members in the program to assist or serve as back-up support.
- The City will need to provide up-front costs for completing the Five-Year Consolidated Plan.
- The increased number of eligible projects and programs may create high demands on the small amount of funds expected to be available.
- . The annual audits are conducted by HUD who tends to be more punitive and less forgiving of errors.

After Council discussion consensus was to stay with the Urban County Program.

4. **INFORMATION**

None.

5. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Lord adjourned the Worksession at 8:22 p.m.

Maureen Scott, City Clerk

Georgia Lord, Mayor

Date: